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Comes now the plaintiff Medical Supply Chain. lnc., through its counsel, Bret D. Landrith and

Outline of Petition

makes the following complaint for federal antitrust and state contract related claims.

Jurisdiction
1. Subject Matter Jurisdiction
2_ Personal Jurisdiction
3. Venue
4. Governing Law

Facts
J. Parties

a. Plaintiff
b. Defendants
c. Coconspirators Not Named As Defendants In This Action

2. The Relative Markets
a. The Nationwide Hospital Supply Market
b. The Nationwide e-comrncrce Hospital Supply Market
c. The Upstream Healthcare technology Company Capitalization Nationwide Market

3. Anticompetitive Activity in the Subject Relevant Markets
a. The Harm To Buyers In The Market

i. The Harm to Hospitals
ii. The Harm To Healthcare Services Consumers
iii. Loss of Healthcare Insurance
iv. The Injury To Healthcare Insurance Plans
v. The Loss Of Life From Decreased Access To Healthcare

h. The Harm to Medical Supply
Co The Need For Private Antitrust Enforcement

i. The Limited Resources Of The US Department Of Justice
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ii. The Deaths of The FCA Attorneys
Background Procedural History

a. Procedural History
h. The Legal Basis For Now Ripe Monetary Damages Submitted to The Tenth Circuit

The Hospital Group Purchasing Enterprise To Artificially Inflate Prices
a. The defendants' hospital group purchasing enterprise

The Origin of Technology That Made GPO's Obsolete And Eliminated Two Distribution Levels
The Defendants Foreclosure of Competition In The Market For Hospital Supplies Through
Exclusionary Contracts and Loyalty Agreements That Have The Same Exclusionary Effect.
The Monopolization Of The Hospital Supply Industry By The Defendants In Conspiracies And
Combinations With Premier, GIIX. LLC and Their Predecessor Corporations

4.

6.
7.

8.

Events
I
2.

Andrew S. Duff And Piper Jaffray 's Concerted Refusal To Deal.
US Bank's Concerted Refusal To Deal.

J. US Hancorp, Andrew Cesere and Jerry Grundhoffers Concerted Refusal To Deal.
4. The Defendants' Acceptance of Liability For Medical Supply's Business Plan Damages.
5. The Defendants' Theft of Medical Supply's Intellectual Property.
6. The Effects of the Plan To Financially Destroy Medical Supply.
7. US Bancorp, US Bank. Andrew Cesere And Jerry Grundhoffer Realize Because Of The

Prospective Injunctive Relief Action Their Antirust Liability To Medical Supply And The
Requirement At Law That They Divest Piper Jaffray At A $750 Million Dollar Loss.

8. US Bancorp, US Bank. Andrew Cesere And Jerry Grundhoffer Realize Because Of The
Prospective Injunctive Relief Action Their Antirust Liability To Medical Supply And The
Requirement At Law That They Divest Piper Jaffray At A $750 Million Dollar Loss.

9. Piper Jaffray And Andrew S. Duff Realize Because Of The Prospective Injunctive Relief Action
Their Antirust Liability To Medical Supply And The Requirement At Law That They Divest Their
Healthcare Venture Fund. Losing $225,000,000.00 (255 million dollars) In Assets.

10. Medical Supply Informs Robert J. Baker, UHC. Curt Nonomaque, VHA, Novation LLC. Bob
Zollars And Neoforma that it has been unsuccessful in obtaining prospective injunctive and
declaratory relief against their coconspirators Piper Jaffray, US Bancorp. US Bank, Andrew
Cesere And Jerry Grundhoffer and that the conspirators are jointly and severally liable for the
damages Medical Supply sought to avoid.

II. Medical Supply is granted a Rehearing in Tenth Circuit. That Afternoon UI-IC and VilA Realize
Because of Medical Supply's Demand Letter That They Are Required At Law To Divest
Neoforma and Both UHC and VHA Make an Emergency Announcement of An Agreement to
Dispose of Neoforma at a $150,000,000.00 (150 million dollar) loss.

12. Novation, LLC realizes Because of Medical Supply's Demand Letter That Its Relationship With
Neoforrna and Its Long Term Anticompetitive Contract Are l1Iegal Antitrust prohibited Conduct
Without Redeeming Value and Announces It Will Review Ncoforma's Value Creation.

IJ. Robert J. Baker, UHC, Curt Nonomaque. VHA, Novation LLC, Bob Zollars And Neoforma
decide to continue to rely on Piper Jaffruy, liS Bancorp, US Bank, Andrew Cesere And Jerry
Grundhoffer 's corrupt scheme to influence the court.

14. Rober! J. Baker, UIIC, CUr! Nonomaque, VHA, Novation LLC, Bob Zollars And Neoforma's
Utilization of Ongoing Sham Petitioning By Shughart, Thomson & Kilroy, Piper Jaffray, US
Bancorp, US Bank, Andrew Cesere And Jerry Grundhoffer To Deprive Medical Supply of
Counsel.

15. The Impending Threat Of Monopolization of the Market For Hospital Supplies In E-Commerce.

Summary Of Claims
Claims For Relief
COUNT I

Damages For Combination And Conspiracy
In Re~!raint Of Trade Or Commerce
(15U.S.C.§§ 1,15)
Group Boycott Under Sherman I
Allocation of Customers Under Shennan I
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Horizontal Price Restraint Under Sherman I
Vertical Price Restraint Under Sherman I
Tying Agreements Under Sherman 1

COUNT II
Injunctive Relief For Combination And Conspiracy
I!LReiliilint OCfrade Or Commerce
(15 U.S.c. §~ 1,26)

COUNT III
Damage_~_ForMonopolization
(15 U.S.c. §§ 2,15)
Threat of USA PATRIOT Act Suspicious Activity Reporting
Violation of §802 of The USA PATRIOT Act
The Filing of a Malicious USA PATRIOT Act Suspicious Activity Report (SAR)
Harassing Medical Supply and its Agents Outside of This Action
Unilateral Refusal To Deal

COUNT IV
l!:ti!J.nctiveRelief For Monopolization
(15 u.s.c. ~§ 2,26)

COUNT V
Il'1!J1_;!g.esFor Interlocking Directors
(15 U.S.c. § 19)

COUNT VI
Damages For Comhination And Conspiracy
In Restraint Of Trade Or Commerce;;
(26 MO. § 416.031(1), § 416.121(1),(1»

COUNT VII
Injunctive Relief For Combination And Conspiracy
In Restraint Of Trade Or Commerce
(26 MO. § 416.031 (I i, § 416.071 (I), (2), § 416.121( 1)(1»

COUNT VIII
Damages For Monopoli!.ation
(26 MO. § 416.031(2), § 416.121(1),(1»

COUNT IX
Injunctive Relief For Monopolization
(26 MO. § 416.031(2), § 416.071(1), (2), § 416.121(1),(2))

COUNT X
Damages For Tortuous Interference With
Contract Or Business Expectancy

COUNT XI
Damages For Breach Of Contract

COUNT XII
Damages For Breach Of Fiduciary Duty

COUNT Xlii
Damages For Fraud And Deceit

COUNT XIV
Damages For Prima Facie Tort

COUNT XV
Damages For Racketeering
Influenced Corrupt Organization_iR\COl Conduct
(18l1.S.C. § 1962(c), 18 U.S.c. § 1962(d»

COUNT XVI
DAMAGES FOR MALICIOUS FILING OF A SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY
REPORIJSARjJINDER TI-IE USA PATRIOT ACT
(Pub. L. No. 107-56 (2001),18 U.S.c.§ 1030 (e), 31 U.S.c. § 5318 (g)(3»

Tolling Of Applicable Statutes Of Limitations
Prayer For Relief



Conclusion
Demand For Trial By Jury
Designation Of Place Of Trial

.J!JRISDICTION

I. Subject Matter Jurisdiction. This complaint is filed and this action instituted under Sections 4

and 15 of the Clayton Act (15 U.S.c. SS 14 and 26) to recover damages for injuries to plaintiffs business

and property by reason of the violations by the defendants of Sections I and 2 of the Sherman Act (15

U.S.C. SS 1,2). and to enjoin the defendants from continuing to commit such violations in the future and

the Declaratory Judgment Act, 28 U.S.c. SS 220 I and 2202. Jurisdiction of this Court is proper under 15

u.s.c. SS 15 and 26, 28 USc. SS 13~ I, 1332 and 1337. and the doctrine of pendent jurisdiction. The

amount in controversy exceeds 575,000.00, exclusive of interest and costs.

2. The business and acts of the defendants described herein are conducted in, and affect commerce

between and among, the various states of the United States and between the United States and foreign

nations and their territories. The unlawful acts of the defendants alleged hereinafter have restrained

interstate trade and commerce.

3. This complaint includes claims under the Racketeer Influenced and Corrupt Organizations Act

("RICO"). 18 U.S.c. § 196, et seq., a federal question with an amount in controversy exceeding

$75,000.00. exclusive of interest and costs.

4. This complaint includes claims under The Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing

Appropriate Tools Required to intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 200 I (The USA PATRIOT Act)

Pub. L. No. 1(J7-56 (2001), a federal question with an amount in controversy exceeding $75,OOO.()(),

exclusive of interest and costs.

5. In connection with the acts alleged in this complaint, defendants, directly or indirectly, used the

means and instrumentalities of interstate commerce, including, but not limited to, the mails, interstate

telephone communications and the facilities of interstate commercial carriers.

6. This complaint includes claims based on the existence of a written contract under Electronic

Signatures in (i lobal and National Commerce Act, 15 U .S.c. § 700 I et seq. involving a contract made in

interstate commerce and affecting commerce among several states with an amount in controversy

exceeding $75,000.00, exclusive of interest and costs.
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7. Personal .Jurisdiction. The court has personaljurisdiction over the parties who arc 111 the

territorial limits of the United States and who have sufficient contacts with the State of Missouri.

8. Venue. Many of the acts charged herein, occurred in substantial part in the District for Western

Missouri and the District of Kansas. Defendants conducted other substantial business within this District

and the plaintiffs corporate headquarters are within this district.

9. Governing Law. This court has jurisdiction over supplemental state law based claims arising

from the common law of trusts, contracts and fiduciary duty under 28 U.S.c. 1\ 1367. The Laws of the State

of Missouri apply to the plaintiffs state law claims and govern their resolution.

I. PARTIES

a. Plaintiff

10. Plaintiff Medical Supply Chain, Inc. (Medical Supply), is a Missouri Corporation with corporate

headquarters at 1300 NW jefferson Court. Blue Springs, MO 64015.

h. Defendants

II. Defendant Novation LLC. (Novation) is a company headquartered at 125 East John Carpenter

Frwy Suite 1400 Irving, TX 75062.

12. Defendant Neoforma Inc. (Neoforma) NYSE Symbol NEOF, 3061 Zanker Road, San Jose,

California 95134.

13. Defendant Robert J. Zollars is CEO of Neoforrna, 3061 Zanker Road, San Jose, California 95111

14. Defendant Volunteer Hospital Association of America, Inc. (VHA lnc.) is a corporation

headquartered at 220 E. Las Colinas Blvd., Irving, TX 75039.

15. Curt Nonomaque, President and CEO, VHA Inc., 220 E. Las Colinas Blvd., Irving, TX 7503'1.

16. Defendant University Healthsystem Consortium (UI-IC) is a company headquartered at 200 I

Spring Road, Suite 700 Oak Brook, Illinois 60523-1890.

17. Robert J, Baker, President and CEO of UHC, 200 I Spring Road, Suite 700 Oak Brook, lIIinois

60523.

18. Defendant US Bancorp, NA (US Bancorp) NYSE symbol USB is a bank holding corporation

headquartered at U.S. Bancorp Center 800 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55402.
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IY. Defendant US Hank, N A is a Delaware Corporation organizcd LInder the National Bank Act, 12

USc. ~~ 21-216d, headquartered at U.S. Bancurp Center SOO Nico llet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55402.

20. Defendant Jerry A. Grundhoffcr, the President and Chief Executive Officer of US Bancorp. His

offices are at 800 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55402. He is not a citizen of Missouri.

21. Defendant Andrew Cesere is Vice Chairman of US Bancorp trust division. I-lis offices are at SOO

Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55402. I-Ic is not a citizen of Missouri.

22. Defendant Piper Jaffray Companies, (Piper Jaffray) NYSE symbol PJC is a company located at

800 Nicollet Mall, Minneapolis, MN 55402.

23. Defendant Andrew S. Duff, CEO of Piper Jaffray, SOONicoilet Mall. Minneapolis, MN 55402. He

is not a citizen of Missouri.

24. Shughart Thomson & Kilroy Watkins Boulware, P.c., (Shughart, Thomson & Kilroy) is a company

located at 120 W. 12TI-I STE 1600, Kansas CilY MO 64105

c. Coconspirators Not Named As Defendants In This Action

25. Premier, Inc. (Premier) 12225 Camino Real, San Diego, CA 92130.

26. Global I-Iealth Exchange LLC (GHX), 11000 Westmoor Circle, Suite 400

Westminster, Colorado 80021.

27. General Electric Company, (GE) NYSE symbol GE. 3135 Easton Turnpike, Fairfield, CT 06828-

0001.

28. GE Hcalthcare, global headquarters, Chalfont St. Giles. United Kingdom, USA headquarters

Technologies: Waukesha, Wisconsin.

29. General Electric Capital Business Asset Funding Corporation, (GE Capital), 3135 Easton

Turnpike, Fairfield, CT 06828-000 I.

30. GE Transportation Systems Global Signaling, L.L.c. (GE Transportation) 3135 Easton Turnpike.

Fairfield, CT 06828-000 I.

31. Jeffrey R. Irnrnelt, CEO of GE and fonner president of (GE Healthcare) 3135 Easton Turnpike.

Fairfield, CT 06S28-000 I.

32. Robert Betz, president of Robert Bctz Associates. Inc.

2. THE RELATIVE MARKETS
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a. The Nationwide lIospital Supply Market

.1.1. The market for hospital supplies includes all products used in the provision of hcalthcare services

at doctor's offices, clinics, nursing homes, hospitals and health systems made up of multiple hospitals and

outpatient facilities. nationwide .

.14. Hospital supplies include everything from consumable bandages. dressings and pharmaceuticals to

facility supplies including linens. instruments. test equipment, cleaning supplies. food and permanently

installed laboratory equipment and physical plant machinery.

35. Currently, the market for hospital supplies is 1.8 trillion dollars in expenditures annually.

36. Two hospital group purchasing organizations. Novation. Inc. and Premier Inc. which originatcd as

cooperative buyer's agents for hospitals currently control which products are available to 70% of the

nations hospitals.

b. The Nationwide e-commerce Hospital Supply Market

37. The c-commercc market includes all the products in the range of hospital supplies described above

when they are selected from on line catalogs or purchased through Internet and World Wide Web

communications from an electronic marketplace.

38. The e-cornmercc market also includes supply chain management software used in healthcare to

enhance the advantages of web based suppliers over traditionally distributed goods which adds value in the

form of obtaining product information, aggregating comparable or substitutable products to maximize

competition in pricing. bidding. ordering. shipping, fulfillment and logistics.

39. The usc of artificial intelligence software by electronic marketplaces radically increases the

efficiency and decreases the costs of products available through traditional distribution systems.

40. Originally there were over a hundred e-comrnerce electronic marketplaces for hospital supplies.

Now there are just two, Neoforma, Inc. the web based supplier controlled by Novation and GHX, LLC a

web based supplier controlled by Premier and other members in a joint venture of formerly competing

hospital manufacturers and suppliers.

41. Medical Supply and its founder Samuel Lipari created the concept of an electronic marketplace for

hospital supplies based on an insurance clearing house model in 1995 but has been prevented from entering

the market independent from the control of Novation and Premier.
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c. The Upstream Healthcar e technology Company Capitalization Nationwide Market

42. The ability to finance research and development and to create working technological solutions is

commonly shouldered by the entrepreneur, his family and friends until the technology can be demonstrated

and its utility can be quantified.

43. Healthcare technology companies and supply chain management companies (throughout this

complaint, supply chain management companies will refer to companies with software applications that

manage hospital supplies in the healthcare industry) create products that can be used throughout the nation,

meeting a universal demand and necessitate capitalization to reach that market quickly as opposed to

attempting to grow from region to region as a bricks and mortar retail store or services industry business

might. Failure of the healthcarc technology or supply chain management company to meet the demand for

its product results in competitors substituting other technological solutions and meeting the demand before

the entrepreneur can pay the cost of his research and development or repay the sources of capital used in

entering the market.

44. US Bancorp NA and Piper Jaffray concentrated 70% of their investment in healthcarc and created

a 150 million dollar healthcare technology venture fund to capitalize healrhcare technology and supply

chain management companies.

45. US Bancorp Piper Jaffray was the leading capital source for health care technology companies and

for supply chain management software that could be adapted to healthcare.

46. US Bancorp Piper Jaffray also provided research to institutional investors and published coverage

of publicly traded healthcare technology companies that gave it the powcr to dominate the early stage

capitalization of privately owned healthcare technology companies and whether the company would be

selected for an initial public offering. the largest capitalization event for an entrepreneur and whether a

market would be made or demand exist for the shares of the offering once they were marketed.

3. ANTI COMPETITIVE ACTIVITY IN THE SUBJECT RELEVANT MARKETS

47. "Most health care costs are covered by th ird parties. A nd therefore, the actual user of health care is

not the purchaser of health care. And there's no market forces involved with health care." President George

W. Bush, Second Presidential Debate, October 14,2004
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4H. The hospital supply market is recognized to be anticornpetitive See The Exclusion of Competition

For Hospital Sales Through Group Purchasing Organizations June 25, 2002 by Harvard Law Professor

Eincr Elhauge and The US General Accounting Office report Pilot Study Suggests Large Buying Groups

Do Not Always Offer Hospitals Lower Prices April 30, 2002

49. On 4/30/02 Elizabeth A. Weatherman, Managing Director Warburg Pincus, LLC and Vice Chair

of the Medical Group of the National Venture Capital Association testified before the Senate that

" ...companies subject to, or potentially subject to, anti-competitive practices by GPOs will not be

funded by venture capital. As a result, many of these companies and their innovations will die, even if

they offer a dramatic improvement over an existing solution." [emphasis added)

50. She was called back on July 16,2003 because of the Judiciary's Antitrust Subcommittee concerns

that GPO monopoly power and unethical conduct is still starving their healthcare technology competitors of

capitalization.

51. US Bancorp Piper Jaffray was fined for acts of extortion against a healthcare technology company

attempting to capitalize itself with another investment bank in the upstream relevant market of healthcarc

capitalization The article cited why the National Association of Securities Dealers fined Piper Jaffray but

the conduct is also a Sherman 2 monopolization violation: "The NASD investigation found a Piper

managing director, Scott Beardsley, threatened to discontinue coverage of Antigenics lnc., a biotech firm, if

it did not select Piper as a lead underwriter for a planned secondary stock offering. As part of a se ttlcmcor

with the NASI), Piper was censured and fined $250,000 and Beardsley was censured and fined $50,()(;" ..

52. In August of 2000 Piper Jaffray proffered positive research to Therrna'Sense, a medical technology

it was interested in providing investment-banking services to. Piper Jaffray won the business of the firm.

and $3.11million in investment banking fees. Such exchanges of positive research for investment banking

business constitute "conflict of interest" by fair dealing standards.

53. Premier helped to set up American Pharmaceutical Partners in 1996, then steered hospital bus incss

to it. For this help and an initial $100 investment, Premier received American Pharmaceutical stock that

was worth $46 million when the company went public in 200 I. Premier also receives a percentage of the

money that hospitals spend buying American Pharmaceutical's drugs. William J. Nydam, once an executive

vice president of Premier. received stock options as an American Pharmaceutical director. He has since left
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Premier, but his options were worth $1.2 million at the stock's initial offering price. Palmer Ford, who

worked for Premier's venture capital unit, received an undisclosed number of American Pharmaceutical

options for consulting work after he had left the buying group. Mary Williams Walsh, "When a Buyer for

Hospitals Has a Stake in Drugs It Buys", NY Times March 26, 2002.

54. Two Medical Supply legal actions to enjoin the Defendants from causing the breach of contracts

to capitalize Medical Supply's entry to market were described to the third Senate Judiciary hearing on the

GPO problem because of the important public policy being defeated by antitrust violations against e-

commerce suppliers:

".IAJ hank tied to an investment house that has seventy percent of its holdings in health care
suppliers refused to provide the company with simple escrow services through a blatant
misapplication of the USA Patriot Act. Most recently an international conglomerate that is a founder
of GHX was willing to take a $15 million dollar loss on a real estate deal just to keep this company
out of the market."

Testimony of Lynn James Everard, "Hospital Group Purchasing: Has the Market Become More Open to

Competition?" United States Senate Committee on the JUdiciary Subcommittee on Antitrust, Competition

and Business and Consumer Rights July 16,2003.

55. On 7115/02 The NY Times reported the investigation of antitrust conduct of US Bancorp and Piper

Jaffray 's coconspirator Novation:

"Premier and Novation are also being investigated by the Federal Trade Commission and the General
Accounting Office, the investigative arm of Congress. The F.T.C. wants to know if the groups, which
last year negotiated contracts worth more than $30 billion, are wielding too much control in the
market for hospital supplies. The G.A.O. has already issued a preliminary report that questions
whether the groups actually save hospitals money."

56. By 8/21104 The NY Times reported that the Justice Department had opened a broad criminal

investigation of the medical-supply industry revealing that Novation is being subjected to a criminal

inquiry:

"Novation's primary business is to pool the purchasing volume of about 2,200 hospitals, as well as
thousands of nursing homes, clinics and physicians' practices, and to use their collective power to
negotiate contracts with suppliers at a discount. In many cases, the contracts offer special rebates to
hospitals that meet certain purchasing targets. Although Novation is not well known outside the
industry, it wields formidable power because it can open, or impede, access to a vast
institutional market for health products." [emphasis added)

57. The US Attorney that obtained the criminal subpoenas was found dead in her home the day before

the third senate subcommittee hearing in healthcare group purchasing organizations that took place

September 14, 2004.
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SR. The claim that hospital group purchasing organizations save hospitals money or have ever saved

money has been shown to be without a rational basis. See Defini!U: and Measuring Product-Based Cost

~_in the Health Care Supply Chain by Lynn James Everard, (February, 2005): "An overwhelming 94

percent of respondents believe that their GPO saves them money," Everard reports. "Yet only 29% said

they actually knew how much money their GPO had saved them - and 80 percent of those said they knew

how much, because their GPO told them."

a. The Harm To Buyers III The Market

i. The Harm to Hospitals, Nursing Homes and Home lIealthcare Services:

59. The combinations and or conspiracies of the defendants' Group Purchasing Enterprise produced

adverse, anti-cornperitive effects by preventing the efficiency of competitive electronic commerce in the

relevant United States hospital supply market resulting in excess charges from artificially inflated costs

averaging 20% to 40% and in some goods excess charges of 50%, reducing the bottom line profit and loss

statements of U.S. hospitals by an average of 5% and forcing over 2000 North American hospitals to

operate at an unsustainable loss, endangering the nation's access to healthcarc, increasing the cost of care

and health insurance and forcing the closing and merging of treatment centers, resulting in needless

suffering and death.

The Monopoly's artificial inflation of Hospital Supply Costs (Excluding Prescription Drugs):

60. The defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and

manufacturers caused hospitals to be overcharged $30,000,000,000.00 (thirty billion dollars) in 2002.

61. The defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and

manufacturers caused hospitals to be overcharged $32,200,000,000.00 (thirty two billion, two hundred

million dollars) in 2003.

62. The defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and

manufacturers caused hospitals to be overcharged $34,500,000,000.00 (thirty four billion, five hundred

million dollars) in 2004.

The Monopoly's artificial inflation of Nursing Home and Home Health Costs (Excluding Prescription
Drugs):

II

63. The defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and



63. The defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and

manufacturers caused nursing home and horne health services to be overcharged $S,200,000,OOO.00(eight

billion, two hundred million dollars) in 2002.

64. The defendants in comhinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and

manufacturers caused nursing home and home health services to he overcharged $9,400,000,000.00 (nine

billion, four hundred million dollars) in 2003.

65. The defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and

manu facturers caused nursing home and home health services to he overcharged $10,000,000,000.00 (ten

billion dollars) in 2004.

The Monopoly's artificial inflation of Prescription Drugs:

66. The defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and

manufacturers caused hospital supply consumers to be overcharged $40,000,000,000.00 (forty billion

dollars) in 2002.

67. The defendants in combinations or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors and

manufacturers caused hospital supply consumers to be overcharged $45,000,000,000.00 (forty five billion

dollars) in 2003.

68. The defendants in combinations or conspiracies with hospital suppliers. distributors and

manufacturers caused hospital supply consumers to be overcharged $50,100,000,000.00 (fifty billion, one

hundred million dollars) in 2004.

ii. The Harm To Healthcare Services Consumers

69. A study released February 2, 2005 stated about half of bankruptcies filed in 200 I were because of

medical bills, according to a study published Wednesday on the Health Affairs Web site, the Chicago

Tribune reports (Rubin, Chicago Tribune, 212). For the study, researchers from I-Iarvard Medical School

lind Harvard Law School surveyed 1,771 U.S. residents who filed for bankruptcy in 200 I and interviewed

931 of them (Abelson, New York Times, 2/2).

70. People interviewed had cases involving injury or illness, unpaid medical bills of more than $1,000

in the IWo years prior to filing for bankruptcy, loss of IWO weeks of work because of illness or injury or
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mortgaging of a home to pay medical bills, the l.os Angeles Times reports (Dickerson, Los Angeles Times,

2/2).

71. According to the study, 46.2% of people reporting bankruptcy in 200 I cited illness and medical

bills as the cause the rate rose to 54.5% when births, deaths and gambling addictions were considered as

factors, the APISan Jose Mercury News reports (Jewell, AP/San Jose Mercury News, 2/2), The number of

bankruptcies filed in the United States tripled between 1980 and 2001, to nearly 1.5 million couples and

individuals. The number of medical-related bankruptcies increased twenty-threefold during that period, the

study says (Los Angeles Times, 2/2).

iii. Loss of Healthcare Insurance

72. Approximately 81.8 million Americans -- one out of three people under 65 years of age -- were

uninsured at some point of time during 2002-2003, according to a report released June 16.2004 by the

Health Consumer Organization Families USA.

73. The report, based mainly on Census Bureau data, showed that most of these uninsured individuals

lacked coverage for lengthy periods of time: Almost two-thirds (65.3 percent) were uninsured for six

months or more; and over half (50.6 percent) were uninsured for at least nine months.

74. Four out of five of the uninsured were in working families, according to the report. Of those

working families, the report found that significant portions of the middle class were uninsured. For

example, among people with incomes between 300 and 400 percent of the federal poverty level (between

$55,980 and $74,640 in annual income for a family of four in 2003), more than one out of four were

uninsured over the past two years.

75. Governor Sebelius indicated the stakes involved in being uninsured: "Tens of millions of

Americans -- and hundreds of thousands of Kansans -- are regularly risking their health and financial

security because the cost of health insurance is too often out of their reach," she said.

iv. The Injury To Healthcare Insurance Plans

Medicare

76. In 2002. the defendants in combination and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors

and manufacturers caused Medicare to be overcharged for hospital care $13.920,000.000.00 (thirteen

billion, nine hundred twenty million dollars), caused Medicare to be overcharged for nursing home and
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horne health care $3,845,000,000.00 (three billion, eight hundred forty five million dollars) and caused

Medicare to be overcharged for prescription drugs $5,663.000,000.00 (five billion, six hundred sixty three

million dollars).

77. In 2003, the defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers. distributors

and manufacturers caused Medicare to be overcharged for hospital care $14,832,000,000.00 (fourteen

billion, eight hundred thirty two million dollars), caused Medicare to be overcharged for nursing home and

home health care $4,052,000,000.00 (four billion fifty two million) and caused Medicare to be overcharged

for prescription drugs $6.272.000.000.00 (six billion, two hundred seventy two million dollars).

78. In 2004, the defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors

and manufacturers caused Medicare to be overcharged fur hospital cart: $15,864,000.000.00 (fifteen billion,

eight hundred sixty four million dollars), caused Medicare to be overcharged for nursing home and home

health care $4,316,000,000.00 (four billion, three hundred sixteen million dollars) and caused Medicaid to

be overcharged for prescription drugs $7,000,000,000.00 (seven billion dollars).

Private Insurance

79. In 2002, the defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors

and manufacturers caused Pri vate Insurers to be overcharged for hospital care $12,710,000,000.00 (twelve

billion seven hundred ten million dollars), caused Private Insurers to be overcharged for nursing home and

home health care $3,488,000.000.00 (three billion, four hundred eighty eight million dollars) and caused

Private Insurers to be overcharged for prescription drugs $30,742,000,000.00 (thirty billion seven hr-i-tre-t

forty two million dollars).

80. In 2003. the defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors

and manufacturers caused private insurers to he overcharged for hospital care $13,542,000,000.00 (thirteen

billion, five hundred forty two million dollars), caused private insurers to be overcharged for nursing home

and home health care $3,675,000,000.00 (three billion, six hundred seventy five minion dollars) and caused

private insurers to be overcharged for prescription drugs $34.048,000,000.00 (thirty four billion, forty eight

million dollars)

81. In 2()04. the defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers. distributors

and manufacturers caused private insurers to he overcharged for hospital care $13,539,OOO,OOO.O()(th irteen
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billion five hundred thirty nine million dollars), caused private insurers to be overcharged for nursing horne

and home health can: $],914,000,000.00 (three billion, nine hundred fourteen million dollars) and caused

private insurers to be overcharged for prescription drugs $38,095,000,000.00 (thirty eight billion ninety five

million dollars).

Medicaid

82. In 2002, the defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors

and manufacturers caused Medicaid to be overcharged for hospital care $3,631,000,000.00 (three billion,

six hundred thirty one million dollars), caused Medicaid to be overcharged for nursing home and home

health care $1,699,000,000.00 (one billion, six hundred ninety nine million dollars) and caused Medicaid to

be overcharged for prescription drugs $4,045,000,000.00 (four billion forty five million dollars).

In. In 20(H, the defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors

and manufacturers caused private Medicaid to be overcharged for hospital care $3,869,000,000.00 (three

billion, eight hundred sixty nine million dollars), caused Medicaid to be overcharged for nursing home and

home health care $1,790.000,000.00 (one billion, seven hundred ninety million dollars) and caused

Medicaid to be overcharged for prescription drugs $4,480,000,000.00 (four billion. four hundred eighty

million dollars).

84. In 2004, the defendants in combinations and or conspiracies with hospital suppliers, distributors

and manufacturers caused Medicaid to be overcharged for hospital care $4,138,000,000.00 (four billion,

one hundred thirty cight million dollars), caused Medicaid to be overcharged for nursing home and home

health care $1,907,000,000.00 (one billion, nine hundred seven million dollars) and caused Medicaid tf' be

overcharged for prescription drugs $5,000,000,000.00 (five billion dollars).

85. On January 26, 2005, Governor Blunt of Missouri was forced to propose removing thousands of

people from Medicaid insurance. The state-federal program provides health care for the disabled, the blind,

some elderly people and low-income families with children, Also cut would be adults who are considered

medically unemployable but haven't yet qualified as disabled, Medically unemployable persons often rely

on the special coverage while they await federal decisions on whether they arc disabled. The governor

would eliminate podiatry, dental care and rehabilitation services for adults. Also, some services would be

subject to small co-payments and deductible s. In all, the state's need to make Medicaid cuts would save
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$626 million in state and federal funds. Hut even with the cuts, Blunt said, the $5.3 billion program would

consume 26 percent of the total state budget.

v. The Loss Of Life From Decreased Access To Healthcare

86. The rise in healthcarc costs of which hospital supply inflation is a significant contributing factor

led to a reported 18,000 deaths a year in the USA resulting from 40 million Americans being uninsured in

200 I. See "Study Blames 18.000 deaths in USA on Lack of Insurance". USA Today. May 23, 2002.

87. In 2002, the number of uninsured increased to 43.6 million Americans and without decreases in

the mortality rates of untreated illnesses or observed improvements in public health systems. the number of

deaths resulting from the lack of affordable health insurance was 19,962.

R8. The following year. 2003, the number of uninsured Americans increased to 45 million, resulting in

an expected 20,603 deaths resulting from the lack of affordable health insurance.

89. During the period of time in which Medical Supply has been foreclosed from competing in the

market for healthcare supplies as a result of the actions of the defendants. at least 41,206 Americans have

died as a result of the increasing cost of hospitalization and medical care of which artificially inflated

hospital supply costs arc a significant contributing factor.

vi. The Harm to Medical Supply

90. The actions taken by the Defendants have resulted in dramatic losses to Medical Supply its

stakeholders, associates. suppliers and customers. Under traditional Clayton Antitrust Act damages

calculations, the Defendants have caused substantial short and long-term losses that are not recoverable due

to Medical Supply's injury and delay in obtaining banking services. Medical Supply has directly suffered

$2.901,600 in damages the I st year. $27,366,576 in damages the 2nd year. $74,798,940 in damages the 3rd

year plus forward financial damages in the fourth year of $ 140,443,9800 and $223,488,060 in the fifth year

as a combined total of $468,099,156 and trebled are $1,404.297,468.

91. As a direct result of Medical Supply's injury. its associates also are damaged due to the actions of

the Defendants. Losses include an average of 40-60 hours per week participation in Medical Supply's

evaluation and hiring practices: in addition to due diligence and market evaluation activities. Losses of

revenue for associates are $93,085,831 trebled are $279,257,493.
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92. As a direct rcsult of Medical Supply's injury, its consultants and suppliers have been harmed by

Medical Supply's inability to fulfill success agreements and service contracts due to the actions of the

Defendants. Medical Supply consultants and suppliers have performed several thousand hours in services

that arc contractually due and Medical Supply is unable to perform as a result of the actions of the

Defendants. These consultants and suppliers depend on Medical Supply to meet its obligations and the

actions of the Defendants are preventing Medical Supply from doing so.

93. The direct result of Medical Supply injury and inability to perform its services to customers arc

the lost savings and additional revenue Medical Supply generates for its customers through its services.

Losses to Medical Supply customers are directly due to the actions of the Defendants and are 20% of the

total supplies spend health systems currently payout annually or $4,425,655,560 trebled are

$13,276,966,6!lO.

94. Medical Supply's customers arc healthcare systems consisting of hospital groups. The actions of

the Defendants to preserve an anticornpetitive marketplace in health care supplies keep in jeopardy over

2000 of the nation's 5,700 hospitals. The resulting closings of some or most of these hospitals due to

unsustainable supply costs will significantly harm public access to healthcare, increasing loss of life and

unnecessary injury.

b. The Need For Private Antitrust Enforcement

95. At the close of the US Senate Judiciary Committee's Antitrust Subcommittee's hearing entitled

"Hospital Group Purchasing: How to Maintain Innovation and Cost Savings" on Tuesday, September' 4,

2004, the subcommittee's chair suggested that the 1.8 trillion dollar market's anti-competitive behavior

might be better corrected with private antitrust litigation than with new legislation.

i. The Limited Resources Of The US Department Of Justice

96. Two US Attorneys that appeared connected to the criminal investigation of Novation, LLC

have died and three more in the Ft Worth office of the US Department of Justice with antitrust expertise

have been dismissed.

97. The Ft. Worth US Attorney's office has been at the epicenter of where civil antitrust actions by

manufacturers foreclosed from group purchasing organization distribution systems have been litigated
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and is believed to have been the center of effort behind the government's criminal investigation of

hospital supply relationships.

98. On October 18,2004 Leonard Senerote. A former U.S. Army Special Forces officer who was

an expert in complex securities cases and an antitrust trial attorney. Michael Uhl and Michael Snipes.

veteran prosecutors with expertise in white collar fraud and corruption were announced as separating

from the Ft. Worth Office of the US Attorney.

ii. The Deaths of The FCA Attorneys

99. The Dallas Morning News described the office as already reeling from the unexpected deaths

of criminal chief Shannon Ross [the source of the widespread criminal inquiry into medical supplies

and False Claims Act violations against Medicare] and civil and False Claims Act litigator Thelma

Louise Quince Colbert. Ms. Ross, who had been feeling ill, was found September in her home. Ms.

Colbert accidentally drowned a month earlier in July.

100. Medical Supply docs not believe there is currently an active criminal investigation of the

supplier side of hospital Medicare false claims.

4. BACKGROUND

a. Procedural History

Medical Supply filed its first action for injunctive and declaratory relief in the U,S. District Court for the

District of Kansas, Medical Supply Chain, /IIC. v. US Bancorp, NA et al KS. Dist. Case No.: 02-2539

101. Medical Supply sought relief based on a complaint for an urgent Temporary Restraining Order

filed 10/22/02 and amended 11/02/02 because the defendants were repudiating a contract (misusing the

USA PATRIOT Act shown to be a false pretext) on 10/15/02 to provide escrow accounts required for the

deposit of $350.000.00 raised from manufacturer rep candidates by Medical Supply. The denial of the TRO

caused all funds to be lost on 12/1/02. including the company's last resources used to recruit the candidates

and all funds invested in preparation of training.

102. Medical Supply's cause was controversial because it was an action to seek an injunction against

breaking a contract to provide escrow accounts in furtherance of a boycott by US Bancorp and Piper

Jaffrays coconspirator identified in the complaint as Novation. a healthcare group purchasing organization

C(;PO") cumperitor of Medical Supply's in the hospital supply market. Also identified in the complaint
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was Novation's captive e-commerce marketplace Neoforma, Inc. competing with Medical Supply 011 the

web.

103. Medical Supply sought an interlocutory appeal on the denial of injunctive relief without a

memorandum and order or findings of law and fact Medical Supply Chain, Inc. I'. US Hal/corp. NA et al

10th Cir. Case No.: 02-3443. Medical Supply also sought interim pre-hearing relief in the Tenth Circuit.

The pre-hearing relief was denied and the interlocutory appeal was dismissed as moot.

104. Medical Supply appealed the dismissal of its injunctive and declaratory relief action Medical

Suppl» Chain. Inc. v. US Bancorp, NA et al 10th Cir. Case No.: 03-3342. The Tenth Circuit upheld the trial

court's dismissal without findings of law or fact and made a show cause order why Medical Supply and its

counsel should not be sanctioned for a frivolous appeal.

105. Medical Supply answered the show cause order asserting the trial court had applied the incorrect

legal standard and had misstated the USA PATRIOT Act. The Tenth Circuit found that Medical Supply had

pled a conspiracy that included a separate legal entity. contradicting the trial court's ruling and the Tenth

Circuit panel found that Medical Supply was correct in the existence of private rights of action under the

USA PATRIOT Act. However, instead of correcting its ruling and ordering that Medical Supply was

entitled to injunctive and declaratory relief. the Tenth Circuit panel ordered that Medical Supply's COUII~e1

receive its most serious sanction for a frivolous appeal.

106. Medical Supply sought en bane rehearing of its appeal, giving notice that the panel's ruling had no

preclusive effect for the parties regarding the future action for monetary damages in the Western District of

Missouri. Neither the court nor opposing counsel contradicted Medical Supply's ripeness analysis. The

court declined to rehear the case en bane and Medical Supply is now seeking Supreme Court review.

b. The Legal Basis For Now Ripe Monetary Damages Submitted til The Tenth Circuit

107. Now that Medical Supply has experienced all the injury it sought to avoid, it is required to bring

its claims for monetary damages to a federal district court: .... .if future damages are unascertainable. a cai.r

of action for such damages does not aecrue until they occur. Zenith, 40 I U.S. at 339, 91 S. CI. at 806." Kaw

Valley Elec. Co-op. Co., Inc, v. Kansas Elec. Power Co-op .. Inc., 872 F.2d 931 at FN4 (C.A.I 0 (Kan.),

1989). See also Barnosky Oils lnc., v. Union Oil Co., 665 F.2d 74,82 (6th Cir. 1981). US Bank was still

attempting to perform the financing part of the contract after Medical Supply filed for its injunctive relief.
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"If the initial refusal is not final, each time the victim seeks to deal with the violator and is rejected, a new

cause of action accrues". Sec Pace Indus., 81J F.2d at 237-39; Midwestern wufflcs, Inc. v. WaJjle House,

lnc., 734 F.2d 705,714-15 {II th Cir.1984 I." Kaw Valley Elcc. Co-op. Co .. Inc. v. Kansas Elec. Power Co-

op ; Inc .• 872 F.2d 931 at 933-4 (C.A.IO (Kan.), 1989).

108. Medical Supply also now has evidence the malicious suspicious activity report as a sham petition

was filed to further the agreement to suppress competition. See, e.g .. AI George, Inc. v. Envirot ecii Corp ..

919 f.2d 1271, 1274-75 (5th Cir. 1991); Korodv-Colver Corp. v. General Motors Corp: In re Rclafen

Antitrust Litigation at pg. 6 (Mass., 2003). The amended pleading for now ripe monetary damages in

Kansas District Court or a new-filed action in some other federal district court would suffer no issue

preclusion on Sherman I or 2 claims. Oltremari v. Kansas Social & Rehabilitative Service, 871 F_ Supp.

1331 (Kan., 1994). The failure of either the trial court or the appellate panel to address the meritorious

appeal that the defendant's use of the USA PATRIOT Act was a sham petition is a Sherman 2 A violation

not excepted hy Eastern RR v. Noerr., 365 U.S. 127, 141,81 S.O. 523,531,5 L.Ed.2d 464 or maliciously

under the USA PATRIOT Act private right of action completes the lack of preclusive effect of the appeal

court decision.

5. THE HOSPITAL GROUP PURCHASING ENTERPRISE TO ARTIFICIALLY
INFLATE PRICES

109. During October 22 thru October 24 in 1979, a little known hospital logistics industry organization

called the Group Purchasing Group held a conference in Vacation Village, San Diego California. At that

event a seven page document was circulated among representatives of cooperative hospital purchasing

groups which originated as buying agents for hospitals that became the blueprint for nationwide fraudulent

price collusion in hospital supplies.

110. The recipients of the document were officials in Sun Health, American Medical Systems, I-ISCA,

Cardinal and other precursors to todays two dominant hospital group purchasing organizations (GPO's),

Novation and Premier. Eventually the document recipients would become the key officials in the later

group purchasing organizations Arnerinet, Novation and Premier and in oligarch hospital supply

manufacturers including Johnson & Johnson and Baxter.

III. The document itself was presented as the perfect "sales story." Ways to communicate to hospitals

that group purchasing cooperatives were creating value for their members. However, the document was
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instead employed as a blueprint for fraud. The membership "value" for hospitals be ing communicated was

a deception about the cost of commodities sold through the cooperative.

112. The fraudulent scheme described a method for creating a false baseline for commodity pricing

from an average of the purchase price of units of goods by kind taken from a broad sample of the goods as

purchased in many hospitals in a variety of locations and in varying quantities. The data would then be used

to create a manipulated average well above an easily obtainable volume discount.

113. The victim prospective hospital would also be subjected to the frightening prospects of price

increases and shortages that would certainly befall hospitals that did not join the security of the purchasing

cooperative.

114. The cooperative would then negotiate a "discounted" price below the false baseline and declare

the difference as the "savings" to the hospital. The cooperatives derived the "savings" from manipulated

baseline costs of goods distributed and therefore had to disconnect the savings expectations of their

member hospitals from an easily comparable commodity price. This "savings" was delivered to the

member hospitals in the form of periodic, usually quarterly refunds, rebates and dividends.

115. The secret document described the upward manipulation of their customers' expected costs as

price "inflation." The scheme included steadily increasing the baselines used to assist members and

prospective members to compare the cooperative's prices. This deception was described as "inflation based

savings ."

116. The cooperatives exploited the foreseeable effect of this delayed repayment to hospitals. Hospitals

billed third party payers including the government's healthcare insurance funds Medicare, Medicaid and

Champus the cooperative contract price or even the artificially inflated baseline price instead of the actual

cost to the hospital once the delayed rebate was subtracted. The scheme depended upon the hospitals

certifying to Medicare that the bills being presented for patient care conformed to the government's

accounting safeguards, including the Medicare Antikickback act.

117. To co-opt administrative officials in hospitals, hospital groups and independent distribution

networks, the cooperatives and later the dominant GPO's would encourage and facilitate maintaining two

sets of books by issuing two different reports. One for the chief executive of the hospital or hospital group
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that fully detailed the various refunds, rebates, dividends, cash and cash equivalent payments and another

for the materials director showing the units purchased at the cooperative price.

I IH. The attendees that employed the perfect sales story were able to insert their cooperative between

the hospital and its suppliers and extract a membership fee. The precursor group purchasing organizations

effectively sold "rebates" rather than price efficiency to their members. The business model was profitable

for the cooperatives but had the potential of becoming extremely profitable if competition could he

consolidated and the increased control of hospital supply distribution could be used to extract fees from

product manufacturers.

119. The firm of Robert Betz Associates was utilized during 1985-86 to obtain a regulatory safe harbor

from the Federal Trade Commission and the Department of Justice from the Medicare Antik ickback statute

to give the appearance of legitimacy to the Vacation Village conference attendees practice of paying

periodic refunds, rebates and dividends to member hospitals. Robert Betz was successful and as a direct

result of his efforts, Department of Justice False Claims Act prosecutions have never since targeted the

GPOs or their supplier cartel members.

120. Once some kickbacks in the form of administrative fees to cooperatives were officially allowed,

the original Vacation Village conference attendees were able to use their illegally inflated revenue stream

to acquire their law abiding hospital supply competitors and a frenzy of mergers and acquisitions resulted

in two dominant group purchasing organizations, Premier and Novation, LLC that control 70% of the

national market in hospital supplies.

121. Premier and Novation, LLC are required under the Anrikickback safe harbor to disclose

administrative fees in excess of 3% that are added to the cost of goods sold through their distribution

networks. Premier and Novation, LLC have however expanded the fees charged member hospitals in ttl"

price of goods sold to include 12 to 15 separate "non administrative fees." The names of the fees charged

include "marketing," "conversion" "stocking" "tracing" and other legitimate sounding supplemental costs

and some overtly illegitimate fees including "channel fees" and "patronage fees", however all such charges

are outside of the safe harbor.

122. Premier and Novation, LLC use their market powcr to extract fees from manufacturers to have

their products distributed through the monopolized distribution networks. The dominant GPO's have
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expanded the Vacation Village "inflation savings" scheme to include managing suppliers to the group

purchasing organization with planned price increases. Premier and Novation, LLC choose market leaders, a

manufacturer with the largest market share to he the sole providers of each line of products used by their

thousands of member hospitals.

123. The market leader is encouraged to set an increased list price for each good distributed by the

GPO and to plan periodic increases in the list price. Premier and Novation, LLC then give the market

leader a long term exclusive contract designed to eliminate competition for the market of goods used by the

member hospitals. The market leader is secretly charged sizable fees by Premier and Novation, LLC for

having its products distributed through the group purchasing organization. The market leader's contract

price to the member hospitals has been increased to include this fee to Premier and Novation, LLC and by

design, the contract price always compares favorably to the manufacturer's list price to further the

"savings" deception on GPO members.

124. The "inflation savings" scheme is perpetuated to this day by annual inflation forecasts created and

distributed by Premier and Novation, LLC. The documents appear to be legitimate economic forecasts to

aid hospital-purchasing directors and include macroeconomic analysis of economic conditions that have the

potential to effect product prices. For those uninitiated into the secrets of the fraud, the long-term contract,

with the hospital'S GPO either Premier or Novation, LLC appear to have protected the hospital against the

full effect of projected increases in the manufacturer's list prices.

125. The fraud however is easily verified. The economic forecasts of Novation LLC and Premier speak

for themselves. The lists of products and services and the projected price changes invariably show price

increases exceeding the annual inflation index rate for the contract protected hospital supply market leader

manufacturers and below annual inflation index price changes for non-hospital supply specialty items, even

declining prices in some markets with competition. To offset these glaringly obvious comparisons,

Novation LLC and Premier make much use (misuse) of macro inflationary data to project increases in

commodities they do not control.

126. As an example, Novation LLC's 2005 projections utilize temporary surges in products like farm

produce from fuel cost increases in 2004 to creatively portray large increases in products not under contract

providing cover for the fraudulently increased prices of the GPO's participating suppliers.



127. Novation LLC and Premier also utilize a broad range of antitrust prohibited devices to coerce their

member hospitals into continuing to he subjected to the artificially inflated healthcare supply costs.

Hospitals are deceived into upgrading their dues based memberships into "shareholder" status and a highcr

rate of refunds, rebates, dividends, cash and cash equ ivalent payments.

128. Because of this illegal product-tying scheme, hospitals are forced to buy products they would not

have otherwise purchased, fearing they will lose their vested interests in what arc in actuality fictitious or

deceptive rebates and discounts.

129. The hospitals are not given meaningful data regarding the perceived "savings" and are prevented

from realizing they are paying their own refunds out of inflated costs at either membership and share holder

remuneration rates.

130. Hospitals and hospital groups that achieve shareholder status are deceived into thinking that they

will lose an "investment" in the achieved shareholder status if they withdraw from the GPO. However,

there is no retainable value in the shares of the GPO. Neither Novation LLC or Premier is publicly held and

the "shares" are a Sherman Act prohibited tying device to prevent competition.

131. Another device to prevent competition in the hospital supply markets for Novation LLC and

Premier members is the allocation of markets among participating suppliers and the GPO's themselves. As

part of their membership agreements Novation LLC and Premier require hospitals to obtain typically 6% of

a product from a supplier that is not the GPO's contracted market leader. Other contract requirements

include participating in a smaller GPO to a limited share of the hospital's purchases so that no hospital or

hospital group is supplied exclusively by Premier or Novation. LLC to deceive the hospitals into thinking

they are not monopolized and to provide a much lower volume inferior choice.

132. The contracts utilized by Novation LLC and Premier reward hospitals and hospital groups for

increasing the market shares of selected product lines sold through the GPO's. Hospital rebate, refund,

dividend cash and cash substitute kickbacks are increased depending on how much use of the targeted

products arc increased.

133. Finally, Novation LLC and Premier employ contracts with harsh terms including severe discipline

for hospitals and hospital groups that obtain products or services from competitive markets outside of the
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GPO. The sanctions can include embargo of supplies. stiff financial penalties and probationary periods of

adverse financial terms as penalties for participating in a competitive market.

a. The defendants' hospital group purchasing enterprise

134. Robert J. Baker, UHC, Curt Nonornaque and VHA distribute hospital supplies by corrupting

administrators in health systems (hospitals, hospital groups and independent distribution networks) that

support the provision of services or provide services to Medicare, Medicaid and Champus funded patients.

lJHC and VHA employ marketing schemes that provide remunerations to healthcare systems under

contracts in violation of thc federal Anti-Kickback Act, 42 U .S.c. ~ 1320a-7b.

135. Robert J. Baker, UHC, CUrl Nonornaque and VHA encourage health systems to violate § 1320a-

7b(b)( I) by receiving unlawful remunerations which arc labeled as "rebates" and are paid periodically

based on the products used by thc health system and its loyalty to the terms of the anticompctitive exclusive

agreement with the group purchasing organization, UHC, VHA or Premier which control 70% of the

hospital supply market.

136. Robert J. Baker, UI-IC, Curt Nonornaque and VHA encourage their member hospitals to believe

the group purchasing organizations are saving money by communicating the "value" of the rebates they are

receiving as contrasted against the constantly increasing prices of hospital supplies allowed into UI-IC,

VI-IA's distribution system.

137. The corrupting subtext of Robert J. Baker, UHC, Curt Nonomaque and VHA's marketing scheme

is knowingly encouraging that third party payers. chiefly Medicare, Medicaid and Champus are billed for

thc arrificially inflated list price, not the actual cost to the health system once the cash and cash substitute

remunerations are factored in.

138. Robert J. Baker. UHC, Curt Nonomaque and YHA violate § 1320a-7b(b)(2) because they

knowingly and willfully pay and offer to pay the unlawful remunerations. To provide cover for the

spiraling prices in the product lists of chosen hospital suppliers who are protected from competition in

lJHC and VHA's captive market. Robert J. Bukerr UllC, Curt Nonornaque and VHA generate flawed

studies that extol the discount in the form of rebates as a savings over the monopoly "list" price for

healthcare supplies.
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139. The constant threat to the corrupt marketing scheme employed by UI-IC and VHA is access to real

data from which to evaluate the actual costs imposed upon member hospitals by the artificially inflated

distribution system, which would be destabilized by independent actions of participating hospitals and

suppliers.

140. Robert J. Baker. UHC, Curt Nonornaque and VHA have protected against this destabilizing by

forcing hospitals and suppliers into long-term anticornpentive exclusive dealing contracts that harshly

penalize every violation. Out of a misguided fear of antitrust liability, the contracts typically assign market

share limiting each health system to 95% of its purchasing through the dominant group purchasing

organization and require a token share of products to be purchased through a "competing" group

purchasing organization.

141. Robert J. Baker, UHC. Curt Nonornaque and VHA have also commanded loyalty among member

health systems by making cash and cash substitute payments to health system board members and chief

administrators in return for participation in the cost inflation scheme.

142. Many forms of the Defendants' cash and cash substitute payments to hospital administrators are

concealed as "consulting contracts" and are not reported to Medicare, Medicaid or Charnpus or subtracted

from the costs of hospital supplies transferred to third party payers.

143. Robert J. Baker, UHC. Curt Nonornaquc, VHA and Novation LLC have made use of payments to

a third party in which hospital CEO's are stakeholders in order to conceal the commercial bribe nature of

the payments. An organization called the Healthcare Research and Development Institute (www.hrdi.com)

has existed since the late I 990s. HRDI has approximately 35 members who arc hospital CEOs (many are

heavily involved in supporting GPOs). The Institute's clients are large manufacturers. publishers, and

large consulting firms. Each client pays the Institute and the members of the Institute, who are also its

shareholders, are paid out of the profits of the organization. For hospital CEOs to personally receive

payments from companies that they do business with is a serious conflict of interest and a failure to fulfill

their fiduciary responsibility.

144. UI-IC, VHA and Premier insist that the Antikickback Act provides a safe harbor for marketing

programs offering discounts to health care providers and that its program was designed to take advantage of

this safe harbor. See 42 U.S.c. ~ 1J20a7b(b)(3)(A): 42 C.F.R. ~ 1001.952(h).
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145. The rewards Robert J. Baker, UHC, Curt Nonomaque, VHA have given to health systems, hospital

hoard members and purchasing managers have been paid in "cash or cash equivalents" and sometimes

equity (stock shares) extorted from health care technology companies permitted to sell through the

distribution system. This appears to be inconsistent with the group purchasing systems' safe harbor theory.

See 42 C.F.R. § 100 1.952(h)(5)(i) C'The term discount docs not include - Cash payment or cash

equivalents (except that rebates as defined in [42 C.F.R. ~ 1001.952(h)(4)J may be in the form of a

check).").

146. Robert J. Baker, LJHC, Curt Nonomaque and VHA also have protected their monopoly markets by

forming a joint venture with each other, acquiring an electronic marketplace that could be co-opted as a

false storefront for their illegal marketing scheme and finally by joining a joint venture created by the

dominant suppliers with their competitor group purchasing organization, Premier.

147. UHC and VHA knowingly created an antitrust prohibited joint venture limited liability company

called Novation, LLC for the purpose of unlawfully setting prices for hospital supplies sold through the

formerly competing group purchasing organizations UI-IC and V 1-1A 's 2000 member hospitals.

148. Novation, LLC limited the suppliers whose products could have access to purchasing managers in

the 2000 member hospitals. Novation, LLC used its power to determine which products were sold to the

member hospitals not to command the best supplier pricing or fulfillment, but instead to guarantee that

approved suppliers would participate in planned upward manipulation of list prices so that Robert J. Baker,

UHC, Curt Nonornaque, VI-\A and Novation LLC could sell "discounts" or "rebates" to their member

hospitals.

149. Robert J. Baker, UHC, Curt Nonomaque and VHA operated Novation LLC to control transactions

between suppliers and member hospitals utilizing facsimile telephony (fax) and Electronic Data

Interchange (EDI) ordering and fulfillment to keep track of hospital purchasing data and police supplier

fulfillment and product pricing to ensure healthcare product prices were being continually manipulated

upwards (artificially inflated).

150. When web based business to business electronic marketplaces showed the potential to

dramatically increase hospital supply purchasing efficiency and lower hospital supply prices by facilitating

dircct communications between hospital groups and many competing product suppliers, Robert J. Baker,
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UHC. Curt Nonomaque , VHA and Novation LLC actively prevented Ncoforrna.corn, an electronic

marketplace that enabled hospital supplies 10 be purchased on the web from having access UI-IC and

VHA's member hospital market and from carrying the products of Novation's suppliers.

151. Rober! J. Baker, UHC, Curt Nonornaque, VHA and Novation LLC's power to exclude entrants

from their market with long term anticornpetitive contracts and a centralizing price controlling joint

venture, allowed Neoforma.corn to be taken over in a scheme to utilize the new web based electronic

marketplace as a mere "storefront" for the existing inefficient bricks and mortar group purchasing

organization Novation LLC and therefore secure UHC and VHA's price inflation scheme.

152. US Bancorp, US Bank, Andrew Ceserc, Jerry Grundhoffer, Piper Jaffray And Andrew S. Duff

participated in a syndicate to make a market in an initial offering of publicly traded shares for Neoforma,

LLC and to manipulate the stock prices in an illicit "laddering" scheme of prearranged market purchases to

deceive stock investors into buying the shares at rapidly increasing share prices. US Bancorp, US Hank,

Andrew Ceserc, Jerry Grundhoffer, Piper Jaffray and Andrew S. Duff profited from this deceptive

manipulation by receiving blocks of shares in Neoforrna.corn which they inflated in a "pump and dump

scheme" through Piper Jaffrays false recommendations to institutional fund managers and individual

investors in reports about the bright future for the company without disclosing the brokerage's conflict of

interest and participation in the prior arranged scheme to keep Neoform.com from reaching its potential to

increase hospital supply efficiency. Instead, the Defendants planned to suppress Neoforrna.com's

technology to preserve Robert J. Baker, UHC, Curt Nonomaque, VHA and Novation LLC's corrupt

inefficiencies. US Bancorp and Piper Jnffray were fined and paid S32.5 million fine to settle these

securities fraud charges brought by with the SEC, NASD, NYSE, NASAA, and the New York Attorney

General for the fraudulent research.

153. In March, 2000, Robert 1. Baker, UHC, Curt Nonomaque, VHA, Novation LLC, Bob Zollars And

Neoforma into deceiving the board of directors of Eclipsys, a software application company with superior

technology to Neoforrna.com and a positive cash flow into merging with Neofonna.corn based on a long

term contract to pay Neoforma.com a quarterly payment for providing an electronic marketplace on the

web that Robert J. Baker, UHC. Curt Nonomaque, VI-IA and Novation LLC could control.



154. Neoforma. Inc.'s acquisition of Eclipsys and its stream of income was a threat to US Rancorp, US

Bank, Andrew Cesere, Jerry Grundhoffer, Piper Jaffray And Andrew S. Duff's substantial interests in the

hospital supply and hospital supply in e-cornmcrce markets. With Eclipsys, Robert Zollar had the potential

to compete with GPO's and bypass US Hancorp and Piper Jaffrays ability to extort equity from new

market entries trying to supply hospitals.

155. A negative analyst report on thc merger by Piper Jaffray was used to control Robert Zollars and

Ncoforma, Inc. Investors did not understand that Novation LLC controlled what companies had access 10

thousands of hospitals and that Eclipsys superior technology was not as valuable to its directors as the

ability 10 gain access to the monopolized hospital supply market. Investors expressed dismay concerning

the Merger Agreement as follows:

"Investors may be unsettled by combining Eclipsys' relatively high-margin software and services
business with Neoforrnas extremely low-margin online [business-to-business) exchange.
Furthermore, ECLP shareholders are frustrated about the ownership split between [Neoforrna] and
[Eclipsys}. Ncoforma and Eel ipsys are gelling 37% and 28% of the combined company,
respectively. "

156. Similarly, a March 30,2000 report issued by analyst Caren Taylor, of E-Offering entitled

"Neoforma to Acquire Eclipsys and Healthvision - - What's Wrong With This Picture?" stated:

"As we take a step back and look at the big picture, we think there is something fundamentally
IVrong with this deal. We understand that Neoforma has had a difficult time accessing the buyer
market, and we had heard recently that the company might miss their earnings target this quarter. In
addition, we are somewhat dismayed by the behavior of Ecl ipsys - - first its initiation of a takeover
bid of Shared Medical Systems Corp., which was dropped as of today, and now th is sudden
agreement to be aC4u ired by N eoforma.corn. Th is has left us wondering about the underly ing issues
within the Eclipsys organization. We would certainly not want to be the owners of these two
stocks."

157. The detriment to Eclipsys shareholders was also recognized in a March 30,2000 analyst report

issued by Pacific Growth Equities. in which Eclipsys was lowered to a "Neutral" rating from its previous

"Buy" rating. III a paragraph entitled "Terms are disappointing for Eclipsys shareholders", the report stated:

"The terms of the deal call for Eclipsys to receive 1.34 shares of the new Company for each of its
37.5 million shares (50.25 million shares), Novation to receive 69.3 million shares, Healthvision
(excluding the amounts attributable to Eclipsys and the VHA) to receive 0.444 shares for each share
and Neoforma.com to control the rest for a total share count of 2 10 million shares. Because these
companies arc all valued very differently - a classic old economy and new economy merger-
attributing relative value is tricky. However, Neoforma.com, a leader among the emerging online
marketplaces, was essentially still in "show me" mode and had little revenue. On the other hand,
Eclipsys was a profitable company with one of the strongest franchises at $250 million in revenue
last year. .. [t lhus we believe with less than 25% in the new company. the terms of the transaction are

ISS. III addition, Eclipsys shareholders cannot rely on increased medical supply orders from the

Novation agreement to fill in the gaps of the Merger Agreement. As explained in a March 30,2000 Reuters



158. In addition, Eclipsys shareholders cannot rely on increased medical supply orders from the

Novation agreement to fill in the gaps of [he Merger Agreement. As explained in a March 30,2000 Reuters

article, it is not clear how much revenue Neoforma can count on from the Novation arrangement. The

article added mistakenly that with respect to the Novation deal, "Novation really can't prevent their

hospital customers from buying wherever they want to buy"

159. Robert J. Raker, LJI-IC, Curt Nonomaque. VHA and Novation LLC agreed to a plan where

Eclipsys would instead partner with Neoforrna, Inc. and preserve the Defendants' corrupt inefficiencies in

exchange for a long term contract with quarterly payments of member hospital funds through Novation,

LLC.

160. US Bancorp. US Bank, Andrew Ccsere, Jerry Grundhoffer, Piper Jaffray And Andrew S. Dull

deceived purchasers of Neoforma.com's stock into thinking the firm's c-commerce technology would

provide efficiency in the delivery of hospital supplies while knowing that no measurable difference in

efficiency exists in the software technology EDI already employed by Novation LLC and the e-commercc

html based software employed by Neoforrna.com. US Bancorp, US Bank. Andrew Cesere, Jerry

Grundhofter. Piper Jaffray and Andrew S. Duff knew the only advantage leading to efficiency e-commerce

software had over EDI was in facilitating the competition that Novation LLC's control of Neoforma.com

was designed to prevent.

161. US Bancorp, US Bank. Andrew Cesere. Jerry Grundhoffer, Piper Jaffray And Andrew S. Duff

also benefited because 70% of their venture funds were invested in healthcarc technology companies and in

exchange for their participation in the UHC and VI-IA scheme to keep hospital supply costs inflated, Piper

Jaffrays healthcare technology companies received long term exclusive and anticornpetitive contracts with

Novation, LLC. This allowed US Bancorp and Piper Jaffray to profit greatly from underwriting the

healthcare technology and supply chain management companies' initial public offerings.

6. The Origin of Technology That Made GPO's Obsolete And Eliminated Two Distribution
Levels Facilitating Automated Competitive Direct Purchasing In An Electronic Marketplace

162. On July 17, 1993 Physicians Management Group was founded to supply doctor's offices, clinics

and nursing homes with discounted healthcare supplies at costs rivaling the volume purchasing enjoyed by

hospitals. The founders recruited Samuel Lipari, who would later found the plaintiff Medical Supply for his

expcrtisc in lIlass mcrchandis ing. grocery and automotive distribution.
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